
The Town of Tewksbury was Incorporated on December 23, 1734. 

The history of how Tewksbury came to be separated from Billerica, in 1734, centers on Samuel Hunt II, who is considered 
the ‘Father of Tewksbury,’ and Wamesit Village. 

———- 

Samuel Hunt II was born in Ipswich, MassachuseƩs, in 1657 and he passed away in Tewksbury in 1742. Samuel’s        
grandfather, William Hunt, had come to MassachuseƩs with Rev. Peter Bulkeley in 1635.  Bulkeley is the Father of     
Concord, MassachuseƩs.  They had set sail from Odell, England, aŌer Rev. Bulkeley would not read the ‘Book of Sports,’ 
which prescribed what was allowed and prohibited as sporƟng acƟviƟes on Sundays by King Charles in 1633.  Bulkeley 
was ousted from his pulpit and the men decided to seek freedom of worship in New England. 

William Hunt’s grandson, Samuel II, would later be given the duty of guarding the Wamesit area, of what was Billerica, 
by the Merrimack River. This was how Samuel came to be seƩled in Wamesit and lead the founding of Tewksbury. 

———- 

Back in 1640, the area of the Wamesit Village was made up of 3000 acres of land on either side of the Merrimack River, 
and had been granted to Margaret Winthrop, wife of the first Governor of MassachuseƩs, John Winthrop.  Known as the 
‘Winthrop Grant,’ this was awarded by the General Court to thank them for their service.  The provision was that no   
Anglo seƩlers could live there and as a result, the Wamesit Indians could remain seƩled in the area as they had done for 
100s of years. 

 
 Wamesit Village, Tewksbury: According to Daniel Gookin’s, 1792,  
             Historical CollecƟon of Indians in New England: 

‘WamesitÊisÊtheÊfiŌhÊprayingÊtown;ÊandÊthisÊplaceÊisÊsituatedÊ
uponÊMerrimacÊRiver,ÊbeingÊaÊneckÊofÊland,ÊwhereÊConcordÊ
RiverÊfallsÊintoÊMerrimacÊRiver.ÊItÊisÊaboutÊtwentyÊmilesÊfromÊ
Boston,ÊnorthÊnorthÊwest,ÊandÊwithinÊfiveÊmilesÊofÊBillerica,Ê
andÊasÊmuchÊfromÊChelmsford:ÊsoÊthatÊitÊhathÊConcordÊRiverÊ
uponÊtheÊwestÊnorthÊwest;ÊandÊMerrimacÊRiver,ÊuponÊtheÊ
northÊnorthÊeast.ÊItÊhathÊaboutÊfiŌeenÊfamilies;ÊandÊconse-
quently,ÊasÊweÊcompute,ÊaboutÊseventy-fiveÊsouls.ÊTheÊ
quanƟtyÊofÊlandÊbelongingÊtoÊitÊisÊaboutÊtwenty-ÊfiveÊhun-
dredÊacres.ÊTheÊlandÊisÊferƟle,ÊandÊyieldsÊplentyÊofÊcorn.ÊItÊisÊ
excellentlyÊaccommodatedÊwithÊaÊfishingÊplace;ÊandÊthereÊisÊ
takenÊvarietyÊofÊfishÊinÊtheirÊseasons,ÊasÊsalmon,Êshads,Êlam-
preyÊeels,Êsturgeon,Êbass,ÊandÊdiverseÊothersÊ.’ 
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Rev. John Eliot from Roxbury had been establishing Praying Villages for Indians in the MassachuseƩs area during the 
1650s.  He had established 15 villages and Wamesit was the 5th.  The Wamesit Indians and the colonial seƩlers were 
generally friendly towards each other during these years. 



In 1655, the Town of Billerica was established. 
In 1734, the northern secƟon would be broken 
off as a separate Town and it included what is 
now Tewksbury and Tewksbury’s part of the 
area of Wamesit Village, (which also extended 
into Chelmsford and Dracut.) 

During the King Philip’s War, 1675-1676, there 
was concern that unfriendly Indians would 
come from the north and cross the Merrimack 
River into the Wamesit Village area and further 
south into what was Billerica.   

The grandson of Governor Winthrop, WaitsƟll 
Winthrop had inherited 1000 acres of his      
grandmother’s 3000 acre land grant in    
Wamesit, which included the area where there 
was concern about Indians crossing the river 
from the north.  WaitsƟll was serving as the 
Chief Judge of the MassachuseƩs Superior 
Court, he had heard of Samuel Hunt II’s service 

in previous wars and assigned him with the duty of taking up guard and garrison seƩlement on the River at that 
crossing spot for Indians during King Philips War.  Samuel II would be the only Anglo allowed to seƩle in the area.   

This crossing point on the Merrimack River would later be known as Hunt’s Falls, Lowell, as noted in the encircled 
area on the 1831 map of Tewksbury, below. 



The secƟon of Wamesit that was next to the Merrimack River, at Hunt’s Falls was part of Tewksbury unƟl 1834, 
when secƟons were voted to be turned over to Lowell, due their industrial expansion and populaƟon.  

See the map  above for areas and years of separaƟon to Lowell. 

¨ In 1725, because the trip to Billerica center to get to church was so long, too cold in the winter and too 
warm in the summer, Samuel Hunt II and others peƟƟoned the General Court to form a separate town, but 
no acƟon was taken.  

 
¨ In 1729, they submiƩed a bill to establish the Wamesit Parish, named aŌer the Wamesit Indians, which   
        effort failed when the proponents neither built a meeƟnghouse nor called a Minister in the prescribed Ɵme  
        of 3 years. 
 
¨ In 1733, another peƟƟon was set forth by Hunt and others to set aside a separate town from Billerica, and 

their wish was granted by the Legislature. 

MassachuseƩs Governor Jonathan Belcher signed the bill which stated that the name of the town would be 
‘Tewksbury’, on December 23, 1734.  (A copy of the original bill and a transcript is on the next page.)  

There is no record of the reason for the name of Tewksbury being chosen for the town.  In addiƟon, no             
relaƟonship to Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire, England has ever been found.  

A meeƟnghouse and church were established as prescribed, within 2 years of the Act. These would be a town 
meeƟnghouse and the Tewksbury CongregaƟonal Church in Town Center. These acƟons solidified the               
IncorporaƟon of the Town of Tewksbury.  

 




